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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good afternoon.

          3  My name is Jim Gennaro, Chair of this Committee, and

          4  I'd like to welcome you to this hearing.

          5                 Today the Committee will hear

          6  testimony on two important topics. Proposed Intro.

          7  109-A, which relates to the use by the City of

          8  rerefined motor oil in City vehicles, and proposed

          9  Reso 652-A which relates to New York State's

         10  stormwater permit program.

         11                 In September of last year, this

         12  Committee held a hearing on Intro. 109. And this

         13  past January we held a hearing on Resolution 652.

         14  Upon consideration of the testimony provided at both

         15  of those previous hearings, and additional research,

         16  changes were made to both pieces of legislation.

         17                 As I stated at our first hearing on

         18  Intro. 109, the goal of this legislation is to

         19  conserve a very important natural resource and

         20  protect the environment.

         21                 The use of rerefined motor oil also

         22  serves to save energy and decrease our reliance on

         23  foreign oil imports. Intro. 109-A requires that the

         24  City purchase rerefined motor oil for use in City

         25  vehicles, but it exempts certain Police and Fire
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          2  Department vehicles and will allow the City to

          3  purchase virgin oil where there are documented

          4  supply problems.

          5                 By altering New York City's

          6  procurement practices with respect to motor oil, the

          7  City would lead by example and would demonstrate the

          8  importance of environmentally responsible

          9  purchasing. That's a good thing.

         10                 Resolution No. 652-A has been amended

         11  to reflect that on January 8th, 2003, United State

         12  Department of Environmental Conservation, designated

         13  the entire East of Hudson area of the New York City

         14  Watershed as a municipal separate stormwater system,

         15  those known to some of us as an MS 4, those of you

         16  who follow this issue would know that.

         17                 Therefore, the portion of resolution

         18  652 that relates to this issue is no longer

         19  necessary.

         20                 As amended, proposed Resolution 652-A

         21  calls upon the New York State Department of the DEC

         22  to issue a heightened stormwater permit program for

         23  the East of Hudson area of the New York City

         24  watershed.

         25                 Although the Council reports DEC's
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          2  decision to designate the entire East of Hudson area

          3  of the New York City watershed as a separate

          4  stormwater sewer system, we strongly believe that

          5  the stormwater permits for the highly sensitive East

          6  of Hudson watershed should contain more stringent

          7  and protective provisions than what is applicable

          8  statewide.

          9                 Calling upon the DEC to issue a

         10  heightened stormwater permit program for the East of

         11  Hudson area of the New York City watershed, proposed

         12  Intro. 652-A describes the intense development

         13  pressure that the East of Hudson area faces and the

         14  resultant threat of polluted stormwater runoff. And

         15  before we get going, I'm going to call upon the

         16  Counsel to Committee Donna DeCostanzo to outline

         17  some of the changes to Intro. 109-A, because there

         18  have been some changes since the last time and some

         19  that are taking place very, very recently, so it's

         20  important for all of us to note these changes.

         21                 Before we proceed, I would like to

         22  thank Donna for her work on this issue, as well as

         23  the Policy Analyst Richard Colon, Jeff Haberman and

         24  Marcel Van Ooyen for all of their good efforts and

         25  for the Mayor's Office for their help as well.
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          2                 So, I recognize Donna DeCostanza to

          3  outline the changes to 109-A.

          4                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Good afternoon. So,

          5  we were able to meet with the Administration this

          6  past Thursday and this morning, actually, on this

          7  bill which resulted in certain changes and additions

          8  to the bill, and I'm just going to go through a few

          9  of the major changes to 109.

         10                 Basically if you look at Section

         11  Subsidivision E which are the exceptions to the

         12  bill, we've put in an exception there for emergency

         13  vehicles, which is defined in Subdivision A. We have

         14  also put in an exception regarding emergency

         15  procurements, and also an exception regarding to

         16  warranties. Warranties specifically include

         17  provisions that require the use of a lubricant other

         18  than rerefined motor oil, so that the Administration

         19  wouldn't be in breach of warranty.

         20                 One of the other changes is that this

         21  proposed Intro. 109-A now also contains a provision

         22  which you'll find in subdivision C, which pertains

         23  to contracts for motor vehicle maintenance, when

         24  motor oil is used to perform the contractor's

         25  obligation to the contract.

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 Basically during the previous hearing

          3  on September 13th, DCAS had testified, and we're

          4  aware that the Administration does outsource some of

          5  its vehicle maintenance, so that is the reason for

          6  putting this provision in there.

          7                 Another modification to the bill

          8  regards the price preference. Basically we've taken

          9  advantage of provision in State law which allows a

         10  price preference for recycled products, with at

         11  least a 50 percent recycled content.

         12                 109 actually contains a price

         13  preference of 15 percent, but if you'll notice,

         14  proposed Intro. 109-A, includes a preference of

         15  three percent which we felt was adequate, basically

         16  since the cost of rerefined oil is typically similar

         17  to that of virgin oil, and also because we felt that

         18  the 15 preference is not allowed under the State

         19  law.

         20                 One other major change that you'll

         21  notice is, we basically specify the percentage of

         22  base stock, the percentage of rerefined oil that

         23  needs to be contained in the base stock, we specify

         24  a minimum of 70 percent rerefined oil, or in cases

         25  where that's not available, at least 50 percent
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          2  rerefined oil, basically because we feel that in

          3  light of the market out there, this is a percentage

          4  that does exist in rerefined motor oil, and most

          5  rerefined motor oil actually is typically usually

          6  more than that. And both the State of California and

          7  Chicago have that 70 percent specification whereas,

          8  Seattle even requires a 100 percent specification.

          9                 So, those are the major changes to

         10  the bill.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 So, we'll be hearing a couple of

         13  witnesses on this bill who will give us some

         14  testimony, after which we will take a vote, and so

         15  our first witness will be Cathy Kenny of the

         16  American Petroleum Institute. Oh, pardon me, the New

         17  York State Petroleum Council.

         18                 MS. KENNY: Good afternoon. Actually

         19  the Petroleum Council is a division ATI so you were

         20  right on both counts.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: See, I'm right

         22  when I don't even realize I'm right. How do you like

         23  that.

         24                 MS. KENNY: I just literally got the

         25  bill a few minutes ago, and I'm a fast reader, so...
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And we had Donna

          3  like act it out for you and everything.

          4                 MS. KENNY: You did a nice job.

          5                 I'm not going to reiterate some of

          6  the testimony.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Cathy, we have

          8  to follow the standard procedure that we do at a

          9  hearing of swearing in the witness. So, Counsel to

         10  the Committee will provide the oath and then we'll

         11  proceed from there.

         12                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

         13  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         14  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         15  truth?

         16                 MS. KENNY: I do.

         17                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         19  Please state your name for the record and proceed

         20  with your testimony.

         21                 It's a pleasure to see you today,

         22  Cathy.

         23                 MS. KENNY: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: As always.

         25                 MS. KENNY: It's Cathy Kenny. I'm
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          2  Associate Director for the New York State Petroleum

          3  Council of New York City.

          4                 I'm not going to repeat, since most

          5  of the members sitting on the Committee were here

          6  when I testified last September, but if you recall,

          7  then I went to the stringent licensing procedures,

          8  essentially reviewed EPI standard 1509. I'm pleased

          9  to see amendments in the bill that specify that

         10  refined oil should have the API license.

         11                 This is the only certification for

         12  licensing assurance that the public has, that the

         13  oils meet the standards set forth in 1509. Just

         14  having read the amendments to the bill, it would

         15  appear that the definition of refined oil does come

         16  in part from the federal regs in part 311.

         17                 When you get down to Section 7, where

         18  you specify that the base stock must be at least 75

         19  percent rerefined oil, and I haven't consulted my

         20  companies, obviously, the federal regulations have a

         21  25 percent minimum requirement, and you have to

         22  remember, in the API licensing the object not only

         23  for the oil industry but for the engine

         24  manufacturers who participate in setting the

         25  standards and doing the audits, said it must meet a
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          2  performance standard. And this is also true when the

          3  federal have requirements for gasoline that will

          4  tell us you have to reduce your VOCs by this, your

          5  NOX by that, but they don't tell you what to put in

          6  the gasoline.

          7                 Your bill is more restrictive in

          8  telling rerefiners exactly the percentage that meets

          9  the performance standards, when API's performance

         10  standards, licensing, certification process, says it

         11  meets a certain performance standard.

         12                 So, I don't have the counsel of my

         13  companies at that point, but my initial reaction to

         14  this, regardless of what Chicago's or others have,

         15  is that you would be safer in making sure you have a

         16  variety of suppliers to your bill, if you followed

         17  the federal 25 percent standard.

         18                 It may be very well that all of my

         19  companies have this component, but truthfully I

         20  don't think API would know, because they don't take

         21  the fuel apart, they test it, it's chemical

         22  components, the additives, they make sure it meets

         23  the performance standard. Companies don't

         24  necessarily come in and tell us that this base stock

         25  is 75 percent rerefined oil. So, I know you want to

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  take a vote today, but I have concerns about this

          3  section, and that's just my gut reaction at the

          4  moment.

          5                 I made a quick phone call to confirm

          6  my reaction with one of the experts at API in

          7  Washington just now, and he has similar concerns.

          8                 So, with that, I think the bill is

          9  much improved in making sure that the API licensing

         10  program is there.

         11                 My final caution I would state, and I

         12  would distribute that in my bullets, is that I see

         13  there is still a reluctance on the part of some City

         14  agencies to use rerefined oil, and whatever their

         15  reason is, I would say this, that the procurement

         16  officers must ensure, if they're not going to buy

         17  rerefined oil that's licensed by API they should be

         18  buying oil that is licensed, new oil, virgin oil,

         19  that's licensed by API.

         20                 All the manufacturers will tell you

         21  that, whether it's Detroit Diesel or anyone else. I

         22  know the Fire Department had some problems with

         23  Detroit Diesel and I think my research on that

         24  negated whatever their problem was. So, I think in

         25  discussing this and negotiating with the City's
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          2  agencies, you might ensure that also.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          5  you, Cathy.

          6                 I'd just like to do something which I

          7  failed to do earlier, and that is recognize the

          8  members of the Committee.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I have a

         10  question.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure, by all

         12  means.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You have

         14  reservation about one item only. How harmful would

         15  it be to pass this bill if at the end of the day

         16  that item that you mentioned indeed was something

         17  that was not recommended for this bill?

         18                 MS. KENNY: It's hard for me to say,

         19  because I don't know with that requirement of 75

         20  percent. All I'm saying is if you stick to the

         21  federal requirement, I know you're pretty much

         22  safer, because that's what the industry is

         23  supplying, a minimum of 25 percent. I don't know

         24  what the market is in those other cities which

         25  required more.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: There's a

          3  possibility that the supply would be short?

          4                 MS. KENNY: I'm sorry?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: It's a

          6  possibility that this will influence the supplied

          7  amount?

          8                 MS. KENNY: No. I wouldn't say that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.

         10                 MS. KENNY: I don't know which of our

         11  member companies, and Safety-Kleen is here, they're

         12  a member company, so I suspect theirs is 70 percent

         13  or whatever. But I don't know about other companies,

         14  and I think by specifying the percentage you do

         15  yourself a disservice, because all you have to

         16  really know is that it's API licensed. That's a

         17  performance standard. So whether it has 25 percent

         18  or 75 rerefined oil as its base stock is irrelevant.

         19                 What you want to make sure is it's a

         20  performance standard. So, I guess what I'm saying is

         21  the Council probably got too involved for the

         22  specifics, and all they need to worry about is that

         23  this oil meets industry standards.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, I

         25  understand your concern. From my angle --
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          2                 MS. KENNY: I can't honestly tell you

          3  you're not going to have supply. I think you're

          4  going to have supply.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Council Member

          8  Koppell.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'm a little

         10  bit confused. Do you mean to say 75 percent, or did

         11  you mean to say 70 percent?

         12                 MS. KENNY: Whatever the bill says. I

         13  meant 70, if that's what it says, yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It's the

         15  reference on page 12, right?

         16                 MS. KENNY: Correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right. So,

         18  that's 70 percent.

         19                 MS. KENNY: Seventy.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I was

         21  concerned I might have missed the requirement, but

         22  you were talking about the 70 percent.

         23                 MS. KENNY: Correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But if it

         25  requires 70 percent from the point of view of the
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          2  Committee that wants more rerefined oil to be used,

          3  that does make a difference, doesn't it?

          4                 MS. KENNY: No. The minimum

          5  requirement, for example, is the federal

          6  requirement, is 25 percent. That's the minimum. All

          7  I'm suggesting is where you should be.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Why would we

          9  --

         10                 MS. KENNY: It's not better oil.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It's not

         12  better oil. The object here is not better oil, but

         13  using more used oil. So, if we only have 25 percent,

         14  we're using much less used oil each time, aren't we?

         15                 MS. KENNY: Used oil and rerefined oil

         16  are two different things.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aren't

         18  rerefined oil used?

         19                 MS. KENNY: When you say that the

         20  rerefined oil has 70 percent of rerefined oil, you

         21  do not mean 70 percent of used oil. Rerefined oil,

         22  as you have defined it, is oil that contaminants

         23  have been taken out of, it's been hydrotreated,

         24  other things have been done to it. So, rerefined oil

         25  is not all used oil.
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          2                 We collect about 14 percent of the

          3  oil that's collected is rerefined. So, by requiring

          4  more used oil, it doesn't really increase it. And

          5  rerefined oil can be used over and over again, so if

          6  your conservation goals will be met, whether you

          7  require 70 percent or 50 percent.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I don't

          9  understand that.

         10                 MS. KENNY: Seventy percent of

         11  rerefined oil doesn't mean that you have 70 percent

         12  of your product as used oil. Rerefined oil is used

         13  oil that has stuff taken out of it, additives and

         14  everything else.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay,

         16  apparently there's another witness who is going to

         17  address this subject because you've left me

         18  completely confused, but that's okay.

         19                 MS. KENNY: I guess what I would say

         20  in a gist, you've gotten into particulars in your

         21  bill that were not necessary.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         23                 Next witness, Kevin O'Leary from

         24  Safety-Kleen Corporation. And Millie Sommer.

         25                 MR. SOMMER: Mike.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, pardon me.

          3  You don't look like a Millie. Mike Sommer. Joseph

          4  Ioia. Okay, Joseph. And Alan Mancini.

          5                 Thank you very much for coming. Donna

          6  will give the oath and then you'll state your name

          7  for the record and proceed with your testimony.

          8                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

          9  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         10  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         11  truth?

         12                 MR. O'LEARY: I do.

         13                 MR. SOMMER: I do.

         14                 MR. IOIA: I do.

         15                 MR. MANCINI: I do.

         16                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 You heard some of the commentary

         20  which has come before. To the extent you can shed

         21  light on what some of the members are asking you and

         22  work that into your statement, that would be great.

         23                 So, thank you very much. Please state

         24  your name for the record and proceed with your good

         25  testimony.
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          2                 MR. SOMMER: My name is Mike Sommer.

          3  I'm with Safety-Kleen Corporation. I'm responsible

          4  for blended and base oil sales in the United States.

          5                 MR. O'LEARY: My name is Kevin

          6  O'Leary. I'm also with Safety-Kleen.

          7                 MR. IOIA: I'm Joe Ioia. I'm a

          8  distributor for the Safety-Kleen product.

          9                 MR. MANCINI: Alan Mancini. I'm

         10  responsible for OEM sales.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         12  Whoever is going to preside with the testimony can

         13  do so. If you want to start off by speaking to the

         14  issue which was just discussed, that would be great.

         15                 MR. SOMMER: The only mandate that

         16  we're aware of federally is the minimum 25 percent

         17  rerefined content, is the 25 percent content, I'm

         18  not aware of 70 percent from one state or city and

         19  50 percent for another state or city. All the sales

         20  we have at Safety-Kleen on the blended products are

         21  100 percent rerefined oil, when applicable, which

         22  means if it can be all rerefined oil it would be,

         23  other than the additives or a bright stock or

         24  another base stock that has to be blended to make a

         25  certain specification that is API approved.
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          2                 MR. O'LEARY: I think the question

          3  that was asked was that if you use 25 percent of

          4  rerefined oil, you need 75 percent of something else

          5  to make the product.

          6                 MR. SOMMER: Right.

          7                 MR. O'LEARY: That 75 percent would be

          8  a virgin product. So, yes, you would be taking less

          9  waste out of the stream versus using 100 percent

         10  base oil.

         11                 One-hundred percent base oil has no

         12  virgin product in it, so you would be using more of

         13  the recycled product to make the API a licensed

         14  product. And I think that's where the discrepancy

         15  was, if that's what you're asking.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, certainly

         17  there's a big difference between a 70 percent

         18  standard and a 25 percent standard?

         19                 MR. O'LEARY: Consumption-wise it

         20  makes sense.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         22                 MR. O'LEARY: Right.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         24                 MR. O'LEARY: To make a gallon of oil,

         25  if you take a 25 percent recycled product, to make
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          2  it 100 percent of something you need 75 percent of

          3  something else.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Which is a

          5  virgin product.

          6                 MR. O'LEARY: So, you need 75 percent

          7  of virgin product to make it 100 percent of let's

          8  say 10W30.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         10                 MR. O'LEARY: Versus Safety-Kleen that

         11  uses 100 percent of recycled product, of rerefined,

         12  sorry. So, actually you're taking more out of the

         13  waste stream by using a product with 100 percent

         14  recycled, rerefined product.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         16                 If people could set their cell phones

         17  to vibrate.

         18                 Did you have a statement that you

         19  wanted to make?

         20                 MR. SOMMER: We have previous

         21  testimony that we read in September, if you'd like

         22  to read it again.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're here to

         24  give us your views on our up-to-the-minute piece of

         25  legislation that we have here and to give us your
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          2  views on what you think is a good bill, and anything

          3  that you can use to inform us based on that.

          4                 MR. IOIA: Particularly -- I'm Joe

          5  Ioia.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, because

          7  this is tape recorded and for the purposes of the

          8  transcript they want to be able to attribute the

          9  speaker.

         10                 MR. IOIA: I'm the distributor for the

         11  Safety-Kleen product. Currently right now the City

         12  of New York is using about 30,000 gallons a month.

         13  They've experienced no problems. Sanitation uses it

         14  exclusively in everything that they use. We just got

         15  Department of Transportation currently since our

         16  last meeting has been using it with no problems.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         18                 MR. IOIA: Whatsoever. And I don't

         19  think there will be a problem if the Fire Department

         20  or the Police Department decides to use it.

         21                 I've been in constant contact with

         22  them. And have just about cleared up all of there

         23  skeletons in the closet.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. And their

         25  issues are --
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          2                 MR. IOIA: Their concerns are

          3  basically --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Warranties,

          5  stuff like that?

          6                 MR. IOIA: If it's API licensed, it

          7  meets warranty. It's that simple. I mean, if you

          8  call Detroit Diesel up and you get a copy, which we

          9  have, of all of the products that were approved for

         10  Detroit Diesel warranty, all the Safety-Kleen

         11  products are on Detroit Diesel's approved list.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         13                 MR. IOIA: So no Detroit Diesel

         14  dealership in Metro New York New Jersey can come and

         15  say, well, we're not going to give you a warranty

         16  because you're using the Safety-Kleen product.

         17                 So, it's the same thing with the

         18  Police Department. If they're running, typically

         19  they run Fords or Chevys or whatever they're using

         20  right now, if the product is API licensed, nobody

         21  could come to them and say we're not going to

         22  warranty that engine, or that transmission because

         23  you're using a rerefined product.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And would there

         25  be any issue for supply, in your view, for us to
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          2  hold the 70 percent standard?

          3                 MR. SOMMER: There will be no issue at

          4  all.  When we see the bill, it will be fine as

          5  written.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          7  you very much.

          8                 Okay, Council Member Jennings has a

          9  question.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Good

         11  evening. Your company that supplies motor oil, your

         12  company also refines the oil as well?

         13                 MR. SOMMER: We are the rerefiners,

         14  yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Are you a

         16  member of the New York State Petroleum Council?

         17                 MR. SOMMER: Yes, we're a member of

         18  API, so I would imagine we fall under the same

         19  category.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: And

         21  currently you provide oil products to the City of

         22  New York, as you mentioned.

         23                 And as far as your product is

         24  concerned, your type of product, is there other

         25  companies that also provide this part to the City,
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          2  this similar product?

          3                 MR. SOMMER: Not to my knowledge.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So you will

          5  be the only company to be able to supply this new

          6  standard of oil?

          7                 MR. SOMMER: No, that's not correct.

          8  There are compound blenders that buy the base oil

          9  and make a blended product as well.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: There was a

         11  discussion when the last panel was on and I don't

         12  think most of my colleagues were really clear, in

         13  the difference between this rerefined oil and used

         14  motor oil, in terms of how much used motor oil is

         15  going to go into the rerefining.

         16                 MR. SOMMER: Out of every gallon of

         17  used oil that we pick up in the United States, which

         18  is 200 million gallons a year that does not get

         19  dumped, does not get burned for fuel, 65 percent of

         20  every gallon is made into a base oil again.

         21  Sixty-five percent. Thirty percent would be a fuel

         22  or an asphalt-type material as part of the product

         23  and the other five percent would be water.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So the

         25  product that you're going to be providing the City
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          2  now, you currently have a contract with the City; is

          3  that correct?

          4                 MR. IOIA: Yes. Joe Ioia. We currently

          5  have a motor oil, hydraulic oil and transmission

          6  fluid contract with the City of New York.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So the motor

          8  oil you're providing, how much of that motor oil is

          9  actually used oil?

         10                 MR. IOIA: One-hundred percent.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: It's used?

         12                 MR. IOIA: ACE oil is rerefined from

         13  100 percent waste --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Whose phone is

         15  that? Pardon me. Whose phone is that? Okay.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: When the

         17  last panelist spoke, and I think she spoke about

         18  something different, used oil, and she said

         19  rerefined oil, whereas different chemicals and

         20  things are taken out of it, exactly from her

         21  conversation, what is she talking about?

         22                 MR. IOIA: That's the refining process

         23  that Safety-Kleen uses when they hydrocrack the

         24  product. So, they take the waste oil, and then you

         25  can take over on this because it's your gig.
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          2                 MR. SOMMER: Do you want me to do this

          3  real quick?

          4                 When the used oil comes in, the water

          5  is removed. It goes through what is called a

          6  distillation tower. The distillation tower takes out

          7  the light ends, which are your gasoline-type fuels,

          8  heating oil-type fuels, kerosenes.

          9                 On the bottom, it's called the Lewer

         10  Tower (phonetic), at the bottom is where the asphalt

         11  comes out. The very heavy metals, all of the heavy

         12  contaminants, any dirt and sand floats to the

         13  bottom, that goes to the asphalt industry.

         14                 The middle cut, and there are three

         15  middle cuts for your different type of base oils, a

         16  light, a medium and a heavy, that's what makes the

         17  different motor oils, hydraulic oils, transmission

         18  fluids. But every gallon we sell, wherever we need a

         19  base oil, 100 percent rerefined oil.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Thank you.

         21                 MR. SOMMER: Mike Sommer, by the way.

         22  I'm sorry. I hope that explains it for you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         24                 Council Member Lopez.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: How many
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          2  companies like yours are out there in New York City

          3  who can provide this oil to New York City?

          4                 MR. SOMMER: There are currently in

          5  North America three rerefiners.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, in North

          7  America. But in terms of New York City specifically,

          8  how many companies are in New York City who can

          9  provide this to us?

         10                 MR. SOMMER: Roughly six or eight

         11  companies, whether they're compound blenders, or if

         12  they would be distributors of our products or that

         13  were rebranded under their own brand name, and then

         14  we would have to give them certification if they do

         15  buy the product from us, because we want to make

         16  sure that you do get the rerefined oil.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And currently

         18  the company that you represent is based where?

         19                 MR. SOMMER: Staten Island, New York.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That's very

         21  good. I like that. A lot.

         22                 In regard of your company, right now

         23  you have a contract with the City of New York to

         24  provide this oil currently?

         25                 MR. SOMMER: We have a contract
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          2  through the distributor that's sitting two people

          3  away from me, yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, to the

          5  distributor to provide this oil.

          6                 This contract will be until when?

          7                 MR. IOIA: The contract expires

          8  6/30/2003.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In this summer.

         10                 MR. O'LEARY: This summer, right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And do you know

         12  other organizations, other companies like yours that

         13  are located in New York City who have the potential

         14  to provide this oil in case that you are not the

         15  company who provide this?

         16                 MR. O'LEARY: Safety-Kleen does have

         17  other distributors.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And they are

         19  located in New York City.

         20                 You see, I'm asking you this

         21  question, because you see the Governor of the State

         22  of New York think that commuter taxes are not

         23  important to New York City, therefore, I'm directing

         24  myself to make sure that everything we buy is

         25  produced, consumed and created by us because due to
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          2  the fact that people think that they should not

          3  contribute to our economy, are beginning to be very

          4  regional, in my ways of looking at things. That's

          5  the reason I'm asking you that question.

          6                 MR. SOMMER: This is Sommer, and we

          7  support New York City based four New York City bids,

          8  we support Long Island based companies for Long

          9  Island New York State type bids. Same as Upstate New

         10  York.

         11                 But there are other companies in the

         12  five boroughs, I don't have the names off the top of

         13  my head right now, they may even have an address in

         14  the five boroughs, I'm not sure, but we do support

         15  New York Lubricants Metrolube at this time.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, thank

         17  you.

         18                 MR. SOMMER: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         20  you very much for your testimony. I appreciate it.

         21                 We're going to call the next witness,

         22  Mark Caserta, and we're going to recognize the

         23  members of the Committee. We have Council Member

         24  Vallone from Queens, Council Member Serrano from the

         25  Bronx, Council Member Koppell also from the Bronx,
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          2  Council Member Lopez from Manhattan, Council Member

          3  Jennings from Queens, and Council Member Bill

          4  DeBlasio from Brooklyn.

          5                 Council Member Vallone has to leave.

          6  We have to open the vote for Council Member Vallone.

          7  He has a time commitment, so I'll ask the Clerk to

          8  indicate the bills and the Chair urges a yes vote on

          9  both items.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair. Let me very quickly commend you and the

         12  counsel for making changes to the bill. As Chair of

         13  Public Safety I did have some concerns after the

         14  Police and the Fire Department testified at our last

         15  hearing, and now because of your changes, I vote aye

         16  on both. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         18  Council Member Vallone.

         19                 I would also like to commend the

         20  Speaker of the Council, Speaker Miller. He's the

         21  prime sponsor of 109-A.

         22                 So we'll hear some testimony. As a

         23  matter of fact, we're going to have the remaining

         24  witnesses testify together. Eric Most from INFORM,

         25  why don't you join Mr. Caserta at the panel and
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          2  we'll hear your testimony together.

          3                 Thank you. Thank you both very much

          4  for taking the time to be here and for your interest

          5  on these topics.

          6                 Counsel will give the oath and we

          7  will proceed.

          8                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          9  right hands.

         10                 In the testimony that you're about to

         11  give do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         12  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         13                 MR. MOST: Yes.

         14                 MR. CASERTA: Yes.

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thanks very

         17  much. Please state your name for the record and

         18  proceed with the testimony.

         19                 MR. CASERTA: Well, good afternoon. My

         20  name is Mark Caserta. I'm the New York City Director

         21  of Policy and Advocacy for the New York League of

         22  Conservation Voters.

         23                 On behalf of the League I'm here

         24  today to support Intro. 109-A, a bill that makes the

         25  City of New York a responsible consumer of motor
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          2  oil.

          3                 I would like to begin by thanking

          4  Speaker Miller for introducing the bill, Council

          5  Member Gennaro and the members of the Committee for

          6  supporting the bill and holding this hearing today.

          7                 As you may know, the environmental

          8  community through NYLCV's Legislative ScoreCard

          9  Program considers this piece of legislation to be a

         10  top priority. We also see it as part of a larger

         11  legislative effort to make New York City a

         12  responsible green consumer, through the purchase of

         13  recycled products and the construction of efficient

         14  green buildings.

         15                 The Council has already started this

         16  transformation by passing Intro. 156-A, which is

         17  Local Law 37 2002, requiring the City to purchase

         18  energy efficient products, and we believe 109-A is

         19  an excellent second step.

         20                 The benefits of this bill are

         21  obvious, rerefining motor oil uses much less energy

         22  than refining motor oil from Crude. It also reduces

         23  the negative environmental impacts from oil

         24  disposal, as well as the worldwide negative impact

         25  from oil exploration and extraction. By reducing
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          2  demand for new oil this bill also helps New York

          3  City and the United States become less dependent on

          4  foreign oil, and clearly the timing could not be

          5  better for this bill.

          6                 So, we look forward to working with

          7  the Environmental Protection Committee of the

          8  Council and Mayor Bloomberg in passing this bill and

          9  implementing in the coming months.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         11  you very much.

         12                 MR. MOST: I'm Eric Most and I'm the

         13  Director of the Solid Waste Prevention Program at

         14  INFORM, and I also welcome this opportunity to speak

         15  before you today and I thank you for that

         16  opportunity.

         17                 I'm not going to go over all the

         18  testimony that I gave last time last September, but

         19  I'm very pleased with the progress that's been made,

         20  and very pleased with what I've seen here today.

         21                 I will, like my colleague, just very

         22  briefly mention some of the environmental benefits

         23  of using rerefined motor oil, which was not, some of

         24  the stuff I've seen which was in the packet that was

         25  handed out today, really has not been gone over
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          2  specifically to date. We've already talked about the

          3  fact that purchasing rerefined motor oil saves

          4  energy as a valuable resource, but just to give you

          5  a few facts, rerefining used motor oil requires only

          6  one-third of the energy required in refining crude

          7  oil. It also takes 42 gallons of crude oil to

          8  produce 2.5 quarts of motor oil, but only one gallon

          9  of used motor oil to be rerefined into the same

         10  amount of reusable motor oil.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Can you just

         12  repeat that?

         13                 MR. MOST: Sure.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This is like

         15  your applause line here.

         16                 MR. MOST: This is actually a big one.

         17  It takes 42 gallons of crude oil to produce 2.5

         18  courts of motor oil but only one gallon of used

         19  motor oil to be refined into the same amount of

         20  reusable motor oil. So that tells you about one of

         21  the benefits of using rerefined motor oil. At this

         22  time that the City is trying to purchase

         23  environmentally preferable products, this is the

         24  prime example of an environmentally preferable

         25  product.
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          2                 It would also meet the requirements

          3  of proposed Intro. No. 29, which would require the

          4  City to purchase environmentally preferable

          5  products.

          6                 Something else that's interesting,

          7  that used motor oil is at times contaminated with

          8  lead, arsenic, cadmium, chromium, PCBs and

          9  halogenated solvents, and reusing the used oil

         10  prevents them from entering the environment.

         11                 Also, to tell you about the impacts

         12  of used motor oil on the environment, one gallon of

         13  used oil can pollute more than 1 million gallons of

         14  drinking water. Also one pint of used motor oil can

         15  produce a slick covering one acre of surface water.

         16                 So, again, the idea by recycling used

         17  oil and using rerefined motor oil can keep the stuff

         18  out of the environment and help not only the City

         19  but the surrounding area as well.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         21  you.

         22                 I know we have a question from

         23  Council Member DeBlasio but before I defer to him I

         24  just want to get you on the record as to our 70

         25  percent base requirement versus the 25 percent
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          2  requirement, the federal standard.

          3                 What do you guys come down on this?

          4                 MR. MOST: I mean, I have to say that

          5  the idea of using more rerefined motor oil is a good

          6  idea. I'm not an expert on the exact amount so I

          7  can't speak to how many companies are able to supply

          8  that amount. But what's important, that you are

          9  using more rerefined motor oil, you're not using

         10  virgin stock, which is extremely important.

         11                 MR. CASERTA: We support it,

         12  absolutely.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Terrific.

         14                 Council Member DeBlasio.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you. I

         16  want to thank the Chairman and the Speaker. This is

         17  an important step forward, thank you for your

         18  leadership.

         19                 Quick, quick question. I guess, Mark.

         20                 Efforts to get the business community

         21  to do the same, particularly larger corporations and

         22  efforts to stop do-it-yourselfers from simply

         23  throwing the oil wherever. Can you just give us the

         24  one-minute answer on where we stand on that?

         25                 Not this bill, but where do we go

                                                            38

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  from here?

          3                 MR. CASERTA: Actually, would you have

          4  an idea how that would work?

          5                 MR. MOST: Business-wise, no.

          6                 MR. CASERTA: Yes, I wish I could give

          7  a better answer. I'm not an expert on that. Clearly

          8  we would support looking at that if the Council were

          9  to bring that up.

         10                 MR. MOST: And while I can't speak on

         11  businesses I can speak on other government agencies.

         12  I know some of this is an informational packet that

         13  was handed out today. But the entire fleet of the

         14  City of Chicago uses it. Commonwealth of

         15  Massachusetts uses it, and I was actually just out

         16  in San Francisco last week giving an environmentally

         17  preferable purchasing workshop to San Francisco

         18  government agencies out there, and they are also in

         19  the process of trying to require the use of

         20  rerefined motor oil by off-city vehicles in San

         21  Francisco. So, it's being done by other places as

         22  well.

         23                 MR. CASERTA: I guess I would add, you

         24  know, these kinds of bills require all sorts of the

         25  things with the City and the procurement and the
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          2  government leading by example, you know, I think

          3  that's a good first step in any case. So, we would

          4  certainly support more.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

          6  Council Member DeBlasio. And thank you, both, very

          7  much for being here today and for your advocacy on

          8  this important issue.

          9                 So, we're going to call for the vote.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Point of

         11  information.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I want to know

         14  what is the position of the Administration on this

         15  bill in the new version? Do we have any?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We were just

         17  negotiating with them and if they were inclined to

         18  make their views known at this hearing, they would

         19  have taken the opportunity to do so.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then they were

         21  invited to testify and they declined?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Of course. Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And the

         24  Administration has not provided to us with any

         25  information of what the position is on this?
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          2                 I just want for the purpose of the

          3  record what I'm asking.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: There have been

          5  negotiations between Council staff and the

          6  Administration. And what we have before us today is

          7  that product of those negotiations.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then I don't

          9  understand why they are not testifying. I mean, if

         10  this bill has been negotiated with the

         11  Administration, and this is a final product that had

         12  been agreed upon by both parts of the house, why the

         13  Administration is not testifying in here today?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I wouldn't say

         15  it's necessarily that they're in full agreement on

         16  all aspects of the bill.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But we have to

         19  do our job here and we do our best to engage the

         20  Administration. We have taken into account points

         21  that they wanted to make and concerns that they had

         22  and we made those changes to the extent that we

         23  thought was prudent to do so.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I understand. I

         25  just want to make clear for the purpose of the
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          2  record where the Administration stands on issues of

          3  clean air and the environment, and it's a challenge

          4  that I am putting here in front of everybody because

          5  I think that we deserve to know what is the position

          6  of the Administration in regard to this bill,

          7  because that information should be public, and not

          8  the benefit of negotiations between the Committee

          9  and the Administration.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We've given them

         11  every opportunity to come forward, they've chosen

         12  not to do so, and there you have it. But before we

         13  take the vote, I just would like to recognize the

         14  leadership of Speaker Miller on 109, and the good

         15  work of the staff, particularly Marcel Van Ooyen,

         16  Jeff Haberman and Donna DeCostanzo and Richard Colon

         17  and Rob Newman, as well. We can't forget Rob.

         18                 And we've spoken mostly today about

         19  Intro. 109-A, but we also have a very important

         20  resolution concerning the watershed, which is also

         21  going to be voted, Reso 652-A, which will go a long

         22  way towards helping us protect the East of Hudson

         23  Watershed, which is critically in need of

         24  protecting. So, we're very proud of that product as

         25  well.
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          2                 So, without further ado, I'll ask the

          3  clerk to call the roll.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gennaro.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I proudly vote

          6  aye on both.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Permission to

          9  explain my vote?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In the prior

         12  hearings on this issue, I was reluctant to support

         13  this bill because the question of the guarantees

         14  that the motor vehicles have when these oils are

         15  used. I'm satisfied that that issue has been

         16  resolved now, and they will not affect the guarantee

         17  of the vehicle for the life of the vehicle for using

         18  this oil. And it was for that reason that I was not

         19  able in the past to be a prime sponsor of this bill.

         20                 Now, that that is clarified, I would

         21  like to ask to be a prime sponsor of this bill, and

         22  I am very happy to vote yes on this.

         23                 I want also to congratulate the

         24  leadership of the Chairman of the Committee that is

         25  extremely diligent in all issues that affect our
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          2  health and our environment. Really, you have done a

          3  very good job on this. And aye on both.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Yes to both.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jennings.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I'd like

          9  permission to explain my vote?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I just want

         12  to reiterate the same words that Council Member

         13  Lopez spoke to awhile ago. I, of course, was

         14  supporting Intro. 252 with all along I've been very

         15  reluctant with Intro. 109-A until I understand

         16  yesterday there was an exemption for emergency

         17  vehicles, because that was my concern on the

         18  performance of the vehicles, while I believe in

         19  earlier testimonies when I was here last, those

         20  concerns were brought up at the hearing. So, I'd

         21  like to also be a prime sponsor. And I would just

         22  like to also let the people who are here know, in

         23  the future if they have an objection or they want to

         24  support a bill, they shouldn't just contact one

         25  person in the Council, there are 51 Council members,
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          2  and there are I believe, one, two, three, four,

          3  five, six or seven members of this Committee, that

          4  you can call Committee members individually and

          5  express your concerns, and I did not get any calls

          6  either for or against this bill, and just let you

          7  guys know that in the future you should contact

          8  Council Members individually to express the way you

          9  feel, if you want results to go the way that you

         10  want it. I vote aye on all.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         12  you, Council Member Jennings.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         15  I'd like to explain my vote.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'm pleased

         18  to support the 109-A. This is a step forward toward

         19  the recycling. And there are proposals before the

         20  Council, as you may know, on recycling of other

         21  products.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I don't know

         24  if it's going to come to this Committee or not, but

         25  it's going to be before the Council. I think I sent
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          2  your office a letter about that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: With respect

          5  to the stormwater, that deals with the East of

          6  Hudson area, and, of course, I have great concern

          7  over the plans of the City to build a filtration

          8  plant with respect to that area. And so I

          9  enthusiastically support any efforts to protect the

         10  water quality from the East of Hudson, and I think

         11  we've spoken, Mr. Chairman, about the Committee

         12  holding a hearing, perhaps shortly after the

         13  environmental impact statement is prepared for the

         14  filtration plant on the issue of whether the

         15  filtration plant is really necessary, but I

         16  certainly support the initiative to try and do

         17  stormwater runoff.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I vote aye on

         20  both.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         22  Council Member Koppell.

         23                 I'm sure everybody knows this in the

         24  room, but Councilman Koppell, once upon a time, was

         25  chairman of the Environmental Committee of the New
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          2  York State Assembly for a period of time.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I think five

          4  years.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, I'm very

          6  grateful to have you on the Committee, Council

          7  Member Koppell. Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Serrano.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Aye on both.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of seven in

         11  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         12  abstentions, both items are adopted. Council

         13  Members, please sign the Committee reports.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

         15  very much. Thank you all very much.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 2:30 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 3rd day of March 2003.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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